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Investment 1 1
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HSBC
2020 4 30
(2019 30 :-93.39%)
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - 1 2 0.01
Special Investment
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - 1 1 0.00
Special Investment
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class A - U Series 1 NI GSY 21,385 3,455 10.94
CQS Abs Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares 381 1,647 5.22
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Ordinary Series 1 5,943 18.83
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 13,250 2,520 7.98
Series 1 Jan 20 - GSY
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 1 358 211 0.67
Series 1 Jan 20 - GSY
DKIL (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 Series 01 Jan 19 13,100 1,849 5.86
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 09/2014 25,422 3,525 11.17
Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime 3,198 3,543 11.22
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 1 1,140 3,586 11.36
Third Point Ultra Red. Ptg - Shares C 1.75 Series 8 New Issue 243 1,400 4.43
Third Point Ultra Red. Ptg - Shares C 1.75 Series 12 New Issue 556 710 2.25
York Asian Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Units 1,236 2,671 8.46
31,063 98.40
2019 30 6.61% 505 1.60
31,568 100.00
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145.09 148.13 144.57
123.56 129.45 130.38

2020 30 2019 30 2018 30

31,126,245 34,243,953 37,165,704
405,893 425,256 1,235,171
2020 30 2019 30

100.00% 100.00%
2020 30 2019 30

52.20% 41.40%

29.80% 30.00%

16.40% 21.80%

1.60% 6.80%

100.00% 100.00%

80/186



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 4 30

*kk
Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime**** 3,198 3,300
York Asian Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Units 1,236 2,250
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class A - U Series 1 NI GSY 9,281 1,754
York Asian Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Series 06/2019 696 1,250
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. 10,000 1,002
CQS Abs Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares 135 1,000
0Z Overseas Fund 11 Ltd. - Class L Prime 914 1,000
York Asian Opportunities Fund L.P. - Class A USD A - R Series 08/2019 544 1,000
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class A - U Series 51 GSY 7,500 752
Highland Crusader Fund 1 el
Highland Crusader 11 Fund 1 el
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Ordinary Series 0.22 el

*kk
0z Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime**** 3,198 3,300
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01 Nov 2007 GSY 1,261 2,127
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Ordinary Series 0.22 1,421
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares Non New lIssues 216 1,411
DKIL (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 Series 01 Jan 19 9,453 1,407
York Asian Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Series 06/2019 696 1,250
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. 10,000 1,002
York Asian Opportunities Fund L.P. - Class A USD A - R Series 08/2019 544 1,000
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class A - U Series 51 GSY 7,500 752
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 09/2014 3,688 500
Highland Crusader Il Fund 1 469
Highland Crusader Fund 1 199
CQS Abs Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares Equalization 1 bl
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment 0.14 bl
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 0.16 falet
*

20

** 500
**% 2020 30
*Hxx 2019 20 0z Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. -

Class L Prime
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2020 4 30
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HSBC - (4.56)% 3.73%  (5.97)% 3.62% 3.68%
- Hedge Fund Research Fund of Funds Composite
(2.92)% 5.59%  (4.02)% T.77% 0.51%
Index
HSBC - (2.05)% 4.96%  (3.22)% 5.87% 5.35%
- Hedge Fund Research Fund of Funds Composite
ind (2.92)% 5.59%  (4.02)% 7.77% 0.51%
ndex
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets Wotes
Current Assets

Porfolio of investments 13
Debtors &
Cash and cash equivalents 7
Total assets

Liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year 4
Total Liabilities

Met assets attributable te the

unitholders of the Fund
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As at As at
30 April 2020 20 April 2019
USS'000 S5 000 LSS000 US$000
31,063 32425
1 1,003
898 1,331
#98 2 334
3, Te2 34,759
{194) (38}
(194} {38}
31,568 34,721

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Manager,

17 August 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director
Far and on behalfl of HSBC Management
(Guemsey) Limited

Director
For and an behalf of HSBC Management
{(Guemsey) Limited

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited, an

The notes on pages 15 to 29 form an integral part of these consokdated financial statements.

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 14
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Consolidated Statement of Total Return

Income
Met capial gains

Interest expense
Operating expenses.
Met expenses

Change in net assets attributable to the
unitholders of the Fund from investment activities

Year Ended
30 April 2020

Uss§'000 Uss'on
1
143

i)

(B42)
(243]

(93]

Year Ended

20 April 2019
Us£000 USE'000
2
1.028

(14}

{B48)
(960

670

All results are derved from continuing operations The Fund has no items of ather camprehensve incame and thereforne
the change in net attributable 1o the unitholders of the Fund from investment activities reflects the total comprehensive

income for the period.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to the Unitholders of the Fund

Yaar Ended ‘fear Ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
US§000 USE000 LESE 000 USS'000
Met assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund at
the start of the year 34T 38861
Movement due to isue and redemption of redeemable
participating units
Amounts receivedirecenable on issues - xar
Less: Amounts pardipacable on redermptions [2.454) (4817}
[2.454) (4.610)
Change in net assets attributable to the unitholders
of the Fund from investment activities (693 BT
Mt assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund at
the end of the year 31,568 TN
The notes on pages 15 to 28 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Structure of the Fund

HSEC Special Opportunities Fund (the “Trust’) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, an open ended
Guernsey unit trust scheme established as an umbrella fund which is autharised as a Class B Scheme under The
Authonsed Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 2013,

The registered office of the Manager of the Trust is Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey GY1
1WA, Channel lslands.

The Trust owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Special Opportunities Investments Limited (the “Company™), a BYI
regestered company. The Trust also loarns mones ta the Company to fund its investing activities

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio of Investments. The purpese of the Company is to ensune
that amy withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These consolidated financial statemnents include all the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the Company (together
the “Fund™).

The Trust registered as an Alternative Investment Fund ("AIF") with effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Conduct Authonty and the Commission de Surveillance du Sector Financier. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA
AlFM the Trust is not authorised or regulated under AIFMD and consequently is not required to have a depositary.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (*FRS 102") and the Statement of Recommended Practice
for Authonsed Funds (the “SORF") issued by the Invesiment Management Association in May 2014 and effective
for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 Januany 2015,

2 Principal Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to these consalidated financial statements:

Basis of preparation

These consalidated financial statemenis are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition and measurement of cerfain financial assets and liabilites at fair value,

Gging Concern

At the date of sigring, the Dhrectors of the Manager have no reason to bebeve that the Fund showld not be seenasa
gaing cancem and hence the consglidated financial statements have been prepared on a going cancem bass,

Cash Flow Staternent

The Trust has availed of the exemption available under FRS 102, Section 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ not to
prepare a cash flow statement on the basis that substantially all of the Trust's investments are highly liquid and
carried at fair value, and the Trust provides a consclidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to the
unitholders.

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Ceonsolidated Financial Staterments 20020 15
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of eglimales and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial staterments in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
of FRS 102 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and discloswre of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

The estimates and associated assumpticns are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumatances, the resulte of which form the basis for making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

The areas imnvolving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplicns and estimates are
gignificant to the financial statements are disclosed within the Fair Value of Investments accounting policy and Note
13,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC
Special Opportunities Investments Limited. The Manager does not consider the unconsclidated balance sheet of
the Trust to be a material activity as the only reazon for setting up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accordingly no unconsolidated balance sheet is presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Eunctiongl .

The functional and presentational currency is US Dollar ("USS") because that is the currency of the primary
ecanomic envirenment in which the Fund operates

rmination of fi i I gL

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic enviranment in which the Fund operates. When
indicators of primary economic environment ane mixed, management uses its judgement to determine the functional
currency that most faithfully represents the ecanomic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.
The management has defermined that the functional currency of the Fund is US Dollar, Investor subscriptions and
redemptions are received and paid in the currency of the relevant wnit class.

Financial instruments
The Fund has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of inancial instruments,
i) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including debtors and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value
of the futwre receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised
cost uging the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting pericd, financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
evidence of impairment. If an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's criginal effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of total return.

Ciher financial assets, including investments in investment funds and derivative contracts, are intially measured at
fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the
changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated statement of total return.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire of are
settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the azset are transferred to another party or
{c) control of the asset has been transfemed to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset
to an wnredated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Censolidated Financial Staterments 20020 16
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Eini | i in
il) Financial iatilities

Basic financial hatelities, including creditors and loan obligations are intially recognised at fransaction price, unless
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, whare the debl instrument is measured at the present value of
the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Creditors and lean obligations are classified as debt instruments and are subsequently carried at amaortised cost,
using the effective interest rate meathod,

Financial liabilties are derecognised when the liability s extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

iy Fair value of investments

Ivestments in investment funds are valued at the net asset value ("NAYV) per unit for the underlying investments that
the Fund holds, as at Spm (Guemnsey time) on the consolidated balance sheet date.

Irvestmients in underlying funds which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange or ather trading facility are
valued at the net MAVS provided by their fund managers or their administrators. These values may be unaudited or
miay themselves be estimates.

In addition, their fund managers or their administrators may not provide values at all of in a timely manner and, to
the extert that values are not available, those investments will be valued by the Investment Adviser using valuation
techniques appropriate to those imdestments. In determining fair value, the Investment Adviser takes into
cansideration, where applicable, the impact of suspension of redemptions, igudation proceedings, imvestments in
side pockets and ather significant factors, The directers of the Manager and of the Trustee have ro reason to believe
that the valuations used are unreasonabie,

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are included in the consolidated staterment of tolal return
within net capital gain, Realised and unfealised gains and losses on sales of investments ane determined using the
average cost method. Purchases and sales of imvestments are accounted for on a frade date plus one basis.

iv) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The unrealised gain or loss on apen farward fareign exchange cantracts is calculated by reference to the difference
between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised gain is reported as an asset and
unrealised loss s reported as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet. All net gains or losses on forward fareign
exchange contracts are recorded in the consolidated statement of total return.

Bevenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. DCividend income s recognised when the right
to receive payment is established. All other sources of revenue are recognised on an accruals basis. Revenue iz
included in the consolidated statement of total return. All non-class specific income is allocated to each unit class in
proportion to the total net assets of the unit class during the year. All class specific income iz allocated to the unit
class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included in the consolidated staterment of total return on an accruals basis. All non-class specific
expenses are alocated to each unit class in proportion to the total net assets of the unit class during the year, Al
class SDEI:"-IfH: Expenses arg allocated 1o the unit class to which ﬂ'iE"f relate

Interest expense

Interest experse anses from credit facilities held by the Fund These costs are recognised in the consolidated
staternent of total return and are calculated using the effective interest rate method.

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Censolidated Financial Staterments 20020 17
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2 Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
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Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs anse from credit facilities held by the Fund These costs are recognised in the consolidated
staternent of total return on an accrual basis

Forei il i

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assels and liabiities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated to US Dallars at the foreign currency closing
exchange rate ruling at the consolidated balance sheet date. The Fund repors the realised exchange gain or loss
as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the
congalidated statement of 1otal return. Any realised exchangs gairs of losses as well as unrealised gain or loss anzing
frarm non-US Doliar denominated payables and receivables and on fareign cufrency trarmsactions are reflected in the
consalidated statement of total return

Lash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturties of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, when applicable,
are shown as loans payables in cument iabdities.

inite in

Redeemable participating units are redeemable at the option of the unitholders of the Fund and are classified as
financial liabilities

T ian
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a

financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs are recognised
within the statement of total return when ncurred.

Mew Standards and Amendments

There are currently no future amendments to FRS 102 issued that would have a significant impact on the Fund.

Net Capital Gains
Year Ended ‘Year Ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2018
USS'000 US5'000
Realised gains on non-derivative investments 4,696 4,600
Realised losses on non-demvative investments (358) (544)
Netunrealised losses on non-derivatie investments AT0 (2.284)
Realised gains on derivative investments 20 2
Realised losses on derivative investments (42) (184)
et unrealised (losses)/gains on derivative investments [5) 15
* Tetal net capital gains 142 1628
Dervative investments held by the Fund are forward foreign exchange confracts as detailed in MNole 12,
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 18
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Operating Expenses

Year Ended Year Ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

USs$'000 LISS'000

Management fees [563) (802)
Performance fees - -
Payable te the Manager and its associates [563) B0
Trusiee fees (34) @)
Payable to the Trustes and its associates (34) (38)
Budit fees (159) {i7n
Other sundry expenses [226) 281}
Other expenses [245) (308)
Total expenses (B42) (B44)

& Management, Trustee and Investment Adviser Agreements

The table below details the Management and Trustee fee rates as a percentage of NAV per share class charged to
the Fund and the performance fee rate per share class:

Class Management Fee Trustes Fed Perfarmancs Foa®
USD Doliar 1.65% 0108 10%
Eura 1.65% 0.10% 109%

*Faid to the Investmert Adviser on the new "excess” value over the relevant index (the “Index”). See page 2 for
details of the Index applicable to each class.

The management, trustee and performance fees expensed during the year and outstanding at year end were:

Year Ended 30 April 2020 Year Ended 30 April 2018
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Fea Expensed In year year end Expensed in year yearend
Management LISS563 424 - USS601,728
Trustea LUS534 14T - USE35 480
Pedormance . -
& Debtors As at As at
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
_ US$000 USS000
Amounts paid in advance of investment purchased - 1,000
Receivable for investments sold - 1
Unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts (see Note 12) q 2
1 1,003
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 19
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 Cash and Cash eguivalents As at As at
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

US§'000 UISS000

Cash and bank balances 658 1,33

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited, the Global Sub-Custodian and HSBC
Bank pie, Guermnsey Branch which is ultimately ewned by HSBC Holdings ple. The Fund's cash is maintained within
the Global Sub-Custodian's sub-custodial network in segregated accounts. The credit rating of State Street
Corporation, the parent company of the Global Sub-Custodian, at 30 April 2020 was A (30 Apnl 2019: A) as rated by

SEF's Ratings Agency. The credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc at 30 April 2020 was A2 (30 Apnl 2019: AZ) as rated
by Moody's Ratings Agency

8 Creditors: Amounts Falling due within one year As at A at
30 April 2020 30 April 218

. o ozt US5'000

Unrealised losses on forward foresgn exchange contracts (see Note 12) ) __I_$_:_
Other creditors [(121) 28
[124) (=8

Mo Market value s shown as the value is less than USS500,

8 Taxation Status

The umibrelia fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempt fram Guemsey income tax under the Income Tax
(Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP1,200 (30 Apnl 2015,
GBP1,200).

10 Redeemable Participating Units in Issue

All seres of units rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights attached to them

The Manager may limit the number of units in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to not more
than 10% of the total number of units in issue immediately before such date. Any redemplion of units during the first
12 calendar months from the date of subscription shall be subject to a redemplion fee payable to the Fund and
equal to 5% of redemplion proceeds. Thereafter the redemption fee shall be 0%. A maximum initial charge of up to
3% of subscription monies may be charged on all classes at the Manager's discretion

The tables below present the Redeemable Participating Units in issue at the beginning and end of the financial
years ended 30 Apnl 2020 and 30 April 2019,

Redeamable Redeemahble

Participating Units in Participating Units in

issue as at 1 May 2019 Subscriptions  Redemptions jssue as at 30 April 2020

US Dollar Class 231.175.69 - (16,638.52) 214,537.17

Euro Class 3.285.04 - - 3,285.04

Total 23445073 - (15,538.52) 217.822.21

Redeernabie Redeamable

Participating Units in Participating Wnits in

issue a5 at 1 May 2018 Subscriptions  Redemplions  issue as at 30 Aprl 2018

S Dallar Class 257,083,775 146618 (27,364 24) 231,175.608

Euro Class B AT400 - {6,188.96) 3,285.04

Total 268,587 75 146618  (33s7320) 23448073
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audted Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 20
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 Redeemable Participating Units in Issue (continued)
The table below presents the Net Assets in US3'000 for each of the last three year ends

30-Apr-20 30-Apr-19 30-Apr18
US Dollar Class 31,126 34,244 37,166
Eurg Class 442 477 1,485
Total 31.568 4T 38,861

The Fund's MAVS per unit are disclosed on page 31.
11 Related Party Transactions
HSBC SFT (C.1) Limited (formerty HSBC Prrvate Bank (C.1 ) Limsted) acts as Trustee to the Fund,

The Fund also placed meney on deposit with HSBC Bank ple, Guernsay Branch on a regular basis throughout the
year, The interest rate received is consistert with that received on a normal commercial deposit. HSBC Bank ple, is
the parent entity of HSBC SFT (C.1) Limited and HSBC Bank ple, Guernsey Branch

HEBC Alternative Investments Limited, the Investment Adviser, 13 wholly owned by parties that are affiliated with
the Manager ard the Trustee.

Borrowings Loan
The Fund has the ability to borrow up to 25% of its NAY for a peried of up to ane month to cover a cash shortfall
caused by mismatched settlement dates an purchase and sale ransactions of investment furds; and for a period of
up to three months to fund redemptions; and for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund's
MAY, to facilitate additicnal investment in investment funds. There were no breaches of these borrowing restrictions
by the Fund during the year.

HEBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year. At the yvear end, there was
no amount outstanding (30 Apnl 2019 USSNIl). The interest paid during the year was US31, 235 (30 Apnil 2019:
US513,515) was incurred from the loan balance during the yvear. The loan is secured and repayable on demand

There were no other related party transactions for the year other than fees paid to the Manager, Trustee
and Investment Adviser as cutlined in Mote 5.

12 Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Assets may be denominated i currencees ather than the functional currency of each unit class and certain curfency
expoasure will be hedged back to the relevant unit dass currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such confracts or by using such other denvative instruments as
may be available and having the same or samilar effect

The Fund shall not invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes, The Investiment Adviser retains the
right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Unitholders of the relevant unit class only:
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The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 Apnl 2020 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Eura Class

Unrealised
Gainl{Loss)
Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sald Counterparty uss
04-May-20 EUR1,350 Uss1 481 State Street Bank (12)
b4May20  EUR4Z115 USS472813 State Street Bank (2478)
02-Jun-20 EUR392 876 US§427,115 State Street Bank 745
04-May-20 US5471T2 EUR43,324 State Street Bank 24
04-May-20 US8427,115 EUR383,100 State Street Bank {755)
Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange centracts 769
Unrealised loss on I'amar;i"l‘;r-eign exchange contracts {3.245)
Net unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts [2.476)

The follawing forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2019 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class

Unrealised

Ganf{Loss)

Maturity Amount Bought Amaount Sold Counterparty Uss
31-May-19 EUR4Z7 585 US547E,503 State Street Bank 2205
31.-May-19 US59,713 ELIRE, 504 State Strest Bank (55)
Unrealised gain on forward foregn exchange contracts 2205
Unrealised loss on foreard foreign exchange contracts (55)
Z1s0

MNet unrealised gain on forsard foreign exchange contracts

13 Financial Instrumenis

Market Risk Oversight

The Manager takes a multi-tiered approach fo risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embedded in the manager selection and porifolio management processes, together with portfolic oversight and
monitoring in accordance with Fund investment restrictions, as listed in the relevant Fund section in the Prospectus

In manager selection, due diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks a hedge fund manager takes
in the pursuit of retums are appropriate and controlled. Complementing this investment focused due diligence, is a
separate operational due diligence process, which evaluates the business and operational (non-investment) nsks of
a hedge fund and seeks to avoid hedge funds where inadequate structure or process could compromise an
investment.

In portfolio management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order to assess risk
and portfolio diversification, bath qualitative and quantitative techniques are used, including returns and exposure-
based analysis.

The Manager monitors each imvestee Funds compliance on a monthly basis with the investment restrictions
detailed in the Prospectus, and retains oversight of all aspects of the risk management process.

The main nsgks arising from the Fund's financial instruments are market risk, iquidity risk and credit risk

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund | Annual Report and Audted Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 22

93/186



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Financial Instruments (continued)
Market risk

Market rsk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. it represents the
patential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Imvestment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the porfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countres or industry sectars whilst continuing to fallow the Fund's investrment objective.

Market nisk embodies the potertial for both gains and losses and inclisdes curfendcy nsk, interest rate nsk and phce
risk. The prafitability of the Fund's investment programme depends to a great extent on correct assessments of the
future course of price mavements of secunties and equities and other investments, There can be no assurance that
the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price mavements, The secunfies markets have in recent years
been characterised by great volatiity and unpredictability, With respact to the imvestment strategy into which the
Ivestment Adviser has invested the Fund's assels, there is always some, and from time to time a significant,
degree of market nisk

Dietails of the Fund's investment porffolio at the consclidated balance sheet date are disciosed in the Porifolio of
Imvestments included on page 30.

The Fund, generally seeks to inifiste, increase, reduce or exit positions based on the use of a number of risk
analysis techniques, including but net limited to sensitivity and simulation analysis and value at risk ("VaR"}
measurements, which u=e statistical analysis of historical and implied volatilities and movements to determine
confidence levels of the historical maximum potential loss incurred for each position over a determined time horizon
There can be no assurance that losses will not occur and past performance s not indicative of future results,

The VaR calculation is a mante carlo simulation of each of the underlying holdings of the portfolio, which are then
aggregated to produce returns for one thousand simulated portfolios. The returms are simulated as the proportional
incremerts of constant drift, constant volatility stochastic processes, thereby approximating continuous-time
geometric Brawnian mation

The data below indicates the VaR of the Fund's financial instruments, measured as the patential 1 day loss in value
from adverse changes in fund prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates using a 5% confidence level.

30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Overall Market VaR (55%) [5.81%) (5.61)%

(a) Other prnice nsk

Price rnisk is the nisk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate nsk or cumency nsk), whether caused by factors specific o an individual
investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all imestments traded in the market.

The Furd is required fo comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
Prospectus, The Fund's investment restrictions are monitored by both the Trustee and the Manager on a monthly
basis. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings
come close to restriction levels.

{b) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into fransactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently the Fund may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of ite cumency relative
to other foreign curmencies may change in 2 manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the
Fund's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars. For the year ended 30 Aprl 2020
exposure was USSMIL {30 Apeil 2019, USSNMil),

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfalio level is hedged inta the currency of the relevant unit class
an a manthly basis, using standard monthly forwards, The Fund's overall currency postions and exposures are
monitored an a menthly basis by the Manager.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Financial Instruments (continued)
Market risk (continued)
{b) Fareign currency risk {continued)

The Fund also offers redeemabie participating units denominated in Euro exposing the unitholders to foreign currency
risk. This risk is mitigated on behalf of the unithalders by the Fund entening into ferward fareign exchange contracts
as described above in MNote 12,

{c) Interest rate risk

The majonty of the Fund's financial assets are investments in investment funds wiich neither pay interest nor have
a maturity date. The underlying funds the Furd invests in are exposed lo interest rate nisk, however, the Fund
mitigates this risk by diversifying its investments

As at the year end the Fund had no outstanding loan balance from HSBC Bank ple, Guernsey Branch {30 April 2019:
LISENiT)

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US3698 047 (30 Apnl 2019:
S51,331 488).

Liquidity risk

The main liabilties of the Fund are the redemplion of any umits that investors wish to redeem and the loan
repayable to HSBC Bank plo, Guemsay Branch. The risk is that the Fund might not be able to liquidate investment
positions in order to repay amaunts demanded by its Unitholders of its lender.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an ongaing basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. it is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or other
vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund's overall liquidity risks are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund's imvestment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of
liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the Trustee of the Fund. There are
specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to
restrction levels.

The Manager may imit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redeemed on any Dealing Day to not more
than 10% of the total number of Units in issue immediately before such date. Any Units failing to be redeemed upon
the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be carried forward to the mext Dealing Day and shall be redeemed
pro rata in priority to any other Units in respect of which a Redemption Notice has subsequently been received.

All of the Funds liabliies are payable within one year,

At the 30 April 2020 and 30 Apnl 2019, the following investee funds had a redemption peniod of greater than 20 days
in place to redeem its invesiment haldings

Market Value at Market Value at

30 April 2020 30 Aprd 2019
Uss'000 LISS'000
AG Super Fund Intemational Ltd. - Class 32005 Senes 1 - Special Investment 2 2
AG Super Fund Intemational Ltd. - Class 000K Series 2 - Special Investment 1 1
3 3
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Financial Instruments (continued)
Gredit risk

Credit fisk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an abligation of commitment
that it has enterad into with the Fund

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and also bears the risk of setlement default.

Substaritially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by the Global Sub-Custodian, Bankruptey o insoivency of the
Global Sub-Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect to securties beld by the Global Sub-Custedian to be
delayed or limited. The Manager monitors its risk by monitoning the credit quality and financial positions of the Global
Sub-Custodian the Fund uses, The credit rating of State Street Corporation, the parent cempany of the Global Sub-
Custodian at 30 April 2020 was A (30 April 2019: A) as rated by S&P's Ratings Agency

HEEBC Bank ple, Guernsey Branch which is ultimately owned by HSBC Holdings ple, provided credit facilities to the
Fund during the year. The credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc at 30 Apnl 2020 was A2 (30 April 2019 A2) as rated
by Moody's Ratings Agency.

In addition, the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credit risk held by the underlying fund
investments.

The Fund minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties.
Az at the financial year end, none of the financial assets of the Fund are past due or are impaired (30 April 2019:
none).

Fair value hierarchy

FRS 102 requires disclosure refating to the fair value hierarchy in which fair value measwements are categorised
for assets and liabilities. The disclosures are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in
valuation techniques to measure fair value.,

The fair value hierarchy as required under FRS 102 s based on the valuation inputs used to fair value the financial
aszets and liabdities and consideration of the market activity for each individual financial asset and lability. The
definitions for Levels 1, 2 and 3 are set out below,

Level 1: The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date,

Level 2° Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (ie. developed using market
data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement was categonsed in its entirety was

determined on the basis of the lowest level input that was significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
For this purpose, the significance of an input was agsessed against the fair value measurerment in its entirety.
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If a fair value measurement used abservable inputs that required significant adjustment based an unobservable
inputs, that measurement was a Level 3 measurement Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirely required judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability, The
determination of what constituted "observable” required significant judgement by the Investment Adviser

The Imvestment Adviser considered obsarvable data fo be marke! data that was readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, nat proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively

ivehved in the relevant marke!

(3] Higrarchy analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the far value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assels, measured at fair

value at 30 April 2020:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels LIS$'000 USE'000 US$000 US$'000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: N o
Forward foreign exchange contracts 3 q - 1
Investment funds ' : 31,080 5 31,063
Tetal Assels 2 31,061 3 31,084
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Forward foreign q:n:hanﬁt contracts - 13 - ()
Total Liabilities - 13) - (2

The following table provides an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair

value at 30 Apnl 2019

Level1 Lewved 2 Level3 Total
Assets LISS000 LIS5'000 Uss 000 LISS'000
Femancial assets at fair value through profit of loss:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 - 2
Investment funds F2422 3 32,425
Total Asssts 32,424 3 32427

There were no cutstanding financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss at the year ended 30 Aprid 2019,

The level in the hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

Transfers between levels are recorded as if the transfer happened at the end of the financial year,

In relation to financial assets and liabilties not measured at fair value including cash and cash equivalents, other
assets and liabilities, and net assels attributable to halders of redeematile Units, thair carrying amourt appraximate
fair value because of the short nature and the high credit quality of counterparties and these assets and liabilities

have been classified as Level 2 of the hierarchy in accardance with FRS 102
{b) Transters batween levels of the fair value hierarchy

There were no fransfers between the Levels of the fair value hierarchy during the financial year ended 30 Apil 2020

ar during the financial year ended 30 April 2019,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy |continued)

{c) Leved 3 reconciialion

The table below shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within

Level 3 between the beginning and end of the reporting period.

fear ended Year ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Level 3 Level 3

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss US$'000 USS000
Opening balance at the start of the year 3 16
Total reaksed and unrealised gains for the year . 3
Sales and repayments (10
Closing balance at the end of the year 3 3

(o) Significant unobsarvable inputs used I Measunng e valle

Significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value represents the latest available MAV of the unitsfshares
of the iliquid imvestments in funds as published by the administrator of the fund and the company's recent

transactions,

(&) Effact of change in significant assumptions of Leval 3 financial instrumants

If the fair value of the Fund's imvestment in funds changed by 3% then the fair value of the Level 3 inestment in

furids wauld change by USSBE (30 April 2019; USS89),
Leverage

Where a fund permits leverage, the underlying volatility of the fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise
have been the case withaut the permitted leverage. Whilst this gives a fund the ability to participate in higher retums
associated with greater exposure, it also gives a fund exposure to increased losses where markets in general and a

fund in particular, iInvest in assets where prices suffer declines.

Certain investment furnds in which a fund may invest use material levels of leverage and are not limited in either
their borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commitment The total value of positions held by these funds
may exceed their MAVs. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achieving a much greater overall return, but
alzo increases the Fund's wvolatiity and caries the risk of total loss of the amount invested FPlease refer

to Mote 11 for defails on borrowings of the Fund.

14 Capital Management

The capital of the Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to unitholders of the Fund The Trust is subject

to quartery redemptions requests of the unitholders,

The Trust's aim with respect to management of its capital s to safeguard its ability to continue as a gaing concern

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets altnbutable to unitholders of the Fund. As
detailed in Mote 13, the Fund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospecius, some of which pertain to the
management of lkguedity risk and concentrations thereof include restrictions in respect of investment in closed-ended
funds, restrictions in respect of redemptions, restrictions in respect of the percentage holding allowable in any
individual imeestment fund. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and

situations wherne holdings come cose to restriction levels.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 Capital Management {continued)

As detailed in Note 10, the Manager may limit the number of units which may be redeemed on any Dealing
Day to not more than 10% of the total number of units in issue iImmediately befare such date if the iqudity of the
Furd become insufficient. Swch 10% limit shall be calculated in respect of the Fund as a whole and nat in respect of
each individual wunit class.

The Fund also has a loan facility availabie to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlerment dates on
purchase and sale transactions and to fund redemptions; and for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of
10% of the Fund's NAV, to facilitate additional investment in investment funds. Please refer to Mote 11.

15 Distribution Policy

The Manager does not recommend the paymert of a dividend, All income will be “rolled-up®, and income will not be
distributed but will be refained in the Fund and reflected in the NAY per unit.

16 Foreign Exchange Rate

The following foreign exchange rate was used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency (US
Doliars):

As at As at
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Euro 09187 0.8823

17 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
The Fund had no commitment or contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019
18 Controlling Parties

The Manager does not consider there to be an immediate or ultimate controlling party of the Fund,
19 Significant Events during the year

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the COVID-19 cutbreak to be a pandemic. The impact of
COVID-18 to the enfity can be seen in the drop of the total NAY of the Fund by 10% in March 2020 in comparison to
the previous maonth but the drop was mitigated at the height of the crisis through effective risk management which
resulted in an increase in the MAV of 2% by year end.

There were no cther significant evernts dunng the year which require adjustrmeant to, or disclosure in the consolidated
financial statemerts

20 Subsequent Events

As at June 2020 the overall MAV of the Fund showed an ingrease of 5% from the year end value which is a positive
result to date. However, as the COVID-19 is still an evolving situation and the assessment of this situation will need
continued attention and will evolve overtime. The rapid development and fludity of the COVID-19 virus makes it
difficult to predict the ultimate impact.

The Manager does not under estimate the seriousness of the issue and the inevitable effect it will have on the global
economy and many businesses across the world The Manager believes that the impact of the virus outbreak will be
material on the general economy as initially evidenced by some central banks having already acted by reducing
interest rates and taking other measures. Consequently, this might have implications on the underlying irvestrment
portfolio of the Fund. Further information will be provided by the Manager in due course.

Thene wene no other significant events affecting the Fund since the year end which require adjustment io, or disclosure
in the consclidated financial statements.
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Highest Lowest

Unit Class MAV per Unit HAY per Unit

HEBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Daollar Class US$155.85 UsS$135.45

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR133.41 EUR119.02
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Portfolio of Investments as at 30 April 2020 (Unaudited)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
) R LSS 000 net assets
Investrnent Funds (30 April 2019 93.29%)

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXX Seres 1 - Specal Investment 1 Z oo
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class X300 Seres 2 - Special Investment 1 1 000
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. C|.HSE- AU Qeries"l NI G5Y 21,385 3,455 10.84
CQS Abs Feeder FundLid - Class BUSD Shares E 1847 522
D.E Shaw Composite International Fund - Ordinary Series 1 5,943 18.83
Davidson Kemgner International (BVI) Lid. - Class C Tranche 2 Series 1 Jan
kit 13.250 2520 798
Davidson Kempner Internabional (BV]) Lid. - Class C Tranche 1 Senies 1 Jan
20-G5Y 358 n 087
DKIL (BV1) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 Series 01 Jan 19 13,100 1,548 5.86
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 08/2014 25,422 3525 11.17
Sculplor Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Prime 3108 3543 11.22
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd - Class A Senes 1 1,140 3585 11.38
Third Pomt Uitra Red. Ptg - Shares C 1.75 Senes B Maw lstue 243 1,400 443
Third Paint Ultra Red. Ftg - Shares C 1.75 Series 12 New lssue 556 10 225
Yok Asian Oppartunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Units 1,238 26T 3.46
Total Portfolio of Investments 31,063 98.40
MNet current assets (30 April 20M19; 6.61%) 505 1.60
Total net assets 31,568 100.00
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Investor Information as at 30 April 2020 (Unaudited)
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Ag at As at Asat
Met assat value per unit 30 A pril 2020 30 April 2019 30 Apeil 2018
US Dollar Class US$145.09 LISS148.13 USS144 57
Euro Clags EUR123.56 ELR120 45 EUR130.38
A% at As at Ag at
et asset value 30 APl 2020 30 April 2018 30 April 2018
US Dollar Class US§31,126,245  USS34,243 953 USS37,165,704
Euro Class EUR405,833 EUR425 256 EUR1,235171
Portfalio classification s at s at
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Unlisted securities 100.00% 100.00%
Seetor Alloeation Az at Asat
30 April 2020 20 April 2012
Event Driven 52.20% 41.40%
Mulb-Strategy 28 0K 30.00%
Credit Lang/Short 16.40% 21.80%
Cash and Expéﬂse's 1.80% ' sm
il i P ——
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Summary of Significant Portfolio Changes for the year
ended 30 April 2020* (Unaudited)

Purchases*™*
Cost

Description Hominal US$'000
Sculptor Overseas Fund Il Lt - Class L Prime™ 3188 3300
Yark Asian Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Units 1,236 250
BFAM Asian Opporunites Fund Lid. Class A - U Senes 1 Ml GSY 281 1,754
York Asian Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Series 062019 596 1,250
EFAM Asian Oppontunibes Fund Lid 10,000 1,002
COS Abs Feeder Fund Ltd, - Class B USD Shares 135 1,000
02 Cwerseas Fund || Lid. - Class L Prime 914 1000
Yark Asan Opportunities Fund L.P. - Class A USD A - R Seres 0822019 544 1,000
BFAM Asian Opporunites Fund Lid. Class A - U Senes 51 GSY 7,500 752
Highland Crusader Fund 1 -
Highland Grusader Il Fund o ) 1 -
D E Shaw Composite International Fund - Ordinary Senies 022 -
Sales™

Proceeds
Description Hominal US$'000
OZ Overseas Fund || Ltd. - Class L Prime™* - 3,108 3,300
Beach Pomnt Total Retum Offshore Fund 1l - IS Senes ¥ 01 Nov 2007 GSY 1,261 2127
D._E Shaw Cﬂr_npgsﬂ_eimamaﬁuna_l Fund - Dfdir_mry S-enes o2z 'I,dZ_'I
COE Durectional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B USD Shares Non Mew Issues 218 1411
DEIL (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 Senes 01 Jan 18 9,453 1,407
York Assan Opportunities Unit Trust - Class A USD A - R Series 062019 596 1.2515_
BFAM Asian Opportunites Fund Litd. 10,000 1,002
York Aszan Opportunities Fund LP. - Class A USD A - R Senes 0872018 544 1,000
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class 4 - U Seres 51 GSY 7,500 TE2
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Lid. - Class A Series 092014 3,688 200
Highland Crusader Il Fund 1 ]
Highland Crusader Fund Kl 199
CQS Abs Feeder Fund Lid, - Class B USD Shares Equalzation 23 "
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class XXX Seres 2 - Special Investment 014 -
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class X300 Series 1 - Special Investment iR [ .

* Significant portfoho changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceadng 2% of the net assets of the
Trust at the stant of the year. In any event, 3t a minimurm, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest sales must be shown

** Mo cost/market value (s shown for these secuntes as the costhvalue s less than USS500

*** There were no other purchases and sakes dunng the financial year ended 30 Apnl 2020

=+ Oz Owverseas Fund Il Ltd. - Class L Pnme changed its name to Sculptor Owerseas Fund |l Ltd, - Class L Prime on 20 September
20M8.
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Performance Information
for the year ended 30 April 2020 (Unaudited)

Ferfarmance Overview

Year ended 2020 2019 2018 27 2018

HSBC Special Oppartunifies Fund - Eura Class (4.56)%  3.73% (58T)%  362%  Gea%
Benchmark — Hedge Fund Research Fund of Funds Composite Index  (252)%  5535% (402)% 777 051%

(2.05)% 4.08% (32% 58T 535%

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund — US Dollar Class
i 051%

Benchmark — Hedge Fund Research Fund of Funds Composite Index  (282)%  555% (402)%

Past performance s not indicative of future performance. The performance data does not include commissions
and costs incurred on the issue and redemption of units
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Information on HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund

Infermation on HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund

HSEC Alternative Strategy Fund is an umbrella unit trust comprising the fellowing sub fund and classes (as at 30 Apnl
20200

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund — US Dallar Class
HESBC Special Opportunities Fund — Eura Class
collectively known as the HSBC Special Opportunities Funds

Unitholders should note that copies of the latest financial statements of each of the above Funds are available
from the Manager free of charge on request.
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

19,531 2,058 17,192 1,811
7,511 791 13,296 1,401
18,290 1,927 8,664 913
45,332 4,776 39,152 4,125
10,605 1,117 4,434 467
13,693 1,443 18,156 1,913
24,298 2,560 22,590 2,380
158 17 158 17
20,876 2,199 16,404 1,728
21,034 2,216 16,562 1,745
45,332 4,776 39,152 4,125
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(65) @) (126) (13)
7,536 794 8,520 898
(1,723) (182) (1,100) (116)
(1,339) (141) (2,598) (274)
13 - - - -
(3,062) (323) (3,698) (390)
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@ © @1 @
4,472 471 4,801 506

2018

114/186



HSBC

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
2019 2018
4,474 471 4,822 508
10 (19) 0 18 2
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2018 158 17 11,603 1,222 11,761 1,239
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- - 4,801 506 4,801 506
2018 12 31 158 17 16,404 1,728 16,562 1,745

HSBC

116/186



HSBC
HSBC
IFRS
(@ IFRS
2019 12 31 2019 12 31
EU
2019 12 31
IFRS 16
IFRS 16 2019
IAS 17
1AS 17
IAS 12
1AS 12
2019
2019 12 31
®)
IFRS
IASB EU
IFRS 17
IFRS 17 2017
1ASB

©

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EU

1ASB EU IFRS IFRS

IFRS 1ASB IFRS
IFRS 16
2019
2017 12
2020 IFRS
IFRS 17 2021

2019

117/186



)
1,000

©)

®

@

Q)
HSBC

244

IFRS 10

118/186

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

HSBC

119/186

2018 2018
418 418
418 418

51,022 51,022
(42,794) (40,587)
8,228 10,435

(126) (126)
8,520 10,727
(1,100) (1,100)
(2,598) (4,805)
(3.,698) (5,905)

4,822 4,822
(21) (21)

4,801 4,801



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC

©

©)

©)

®

120/186



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

Q)

IFRS 15

HSBC

121/186



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2018
64 418

2019 2018
51,736 48,808
4,840 1,646
- 568
56,576 51,022
17,281 16,477
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19,531 . - 19,531
3,521 3,344 646 7,511
17,900 362 28 18,290
40,952 3,706 674 45,332
2018 12 31 90 90
17,192 - - 17,192
8,834 4,765 (303) 13,296
8,651 4 9 8,664
34,677 4,769 (294) 39,152
10,605 10,605 10,605
13,693 13,693 13,603
2019 12 31 24,298 24,298 24,298
4,434 4,434 4,434
18,156 18,156 18,156
2018 12 31
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37 97
26 20
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44 58
12 31 221 270
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40,287 3,692 1,304 49 45,332
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HSBC Management (Guemsay) Limited

Balance sheet at 31 December 2019

2019 M6

izt FSg 000 LI

v:;vr_!un! R G 3 19,531 1 .'.1-3;.!

Titdy fir o tatarvalial -'_-' 7511 '_r,}bﬂ
Frepmymants and eoored nooms s .55

ix e =

T T R ) b A

_IE-'-_IP-"'-I'. pinnt andd egusred
1453

Total assets ﬁm o3, #_

Linbdities and aquity

Linbeditses

Temda nrd o ar Sbynllan 2= 10,505 £,494
Acaruale ond othar ket L 1853 TH.160
Tetal Habkditias 24,790 22 500
oty = =
Caled up Fmcs oopisl ir 158 185
Raétnrad anmerga 20,878 R0
Total squity T 21094 R
Total linkditios and squity A5, 23158

The sceompanying notes on pages 13 19 23 form an intageal part of theze financisl siatements
Thaza financial staterments on pages 9 to 23 wars appreved by the Board of Direstors on 0F Apnl 2020 and shgned on iz bahalf
by

S

——— _"\-\-
A C Corfiald S .J Rouxal
Chairman Director

10
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HSBC Management (Guemsay) Limited

Financial statements

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 H0E - R iaea

[ U000 LrSE000
Tntstegt nooma a . s i
Mot intorast income L2 A18
Faa B0 COMIM BWON Mo “..E‘I- B e
_Fan i s e dntaria {45,070} 42, 724y
Mot Tes income : 7507 LFFl]
ol SRt aRp il {1211 |125]
Mot opsrating ncomes 7538 R0
Exmips b SxHmpeinabtso and banalile a 1. 723) [
Jaramt pnd scminetmbos axpeneey “-3._’" ]
Owprscetion end mpsrmant of propesty. piant snd sgquipment 7] - -
Totel noaraiing sl L0z} EL.585)
Profit batoas tax aara 4,0
Tan cavanes L _E) @1
Prafit tor the yesr aATE as0t

Al aparatians and M‘ﬂ'll'ﬂl.n'l'lﬂ. Thare hes baan no othar comphahansieg incema ar axpanca othar than the prafd for tha WaET &5
chown above (2018 nil).

Comparative figuras have beaen restated following a change in accounting policy as detailed in Nota 1.1(h}.
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HSBC Management (Guemsay) Limited

Statement of cash flows for the yvear ended 31 December 2019

2019 248
B et WS 000 LG
Gash Aows lom oostaing scdvitie :
Prafit baloss tax A aTa A,
Kon-gesh Asme nokedad 0 profs befor tax = 18 18
Changa © Op4TELND Sdidin i [EBAT) B, 458}
Chargs i opareteg e ke £ 1. P |4}
Taod pedl @} [
ot ey gurserat from opeveting sctivites X0 L
Cash flews from finsncing setivith
Dnelirtata saet - i
Mot caph (uesd inpgensrated from financing sctivitss - -
Mot Inernans ley San e aah wowiviliri 23 il
2;#1 nnd oesh ﬁlmlll'""l brought forward _T__ME“ '-li:‘.:-"'x‘.:él_e
Effaqt of suzhanga sata ohengea on onsh and casn 4guNERNE L] 18]
LCach and cash squivalama casrisd forward - 19.5M 12140
11
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HSBC Management (Guemsey) Limited

Statement of changes in eguity for the year ended 31 December 2019

Callad up shara FRatainad

capisl BRI Tonal sqidty

USEOH0 Lrsg 000 LSS 000

AT JanZ013 e 1A 18562
Profat dar S year = 4,47F B ATE
-'I'_ﬂ-a_nm_-pt;hmmlmmﬂ For the yaar - 4,477 MF
Devdanda 1o thasqboizan = = =
At ¥l Dec 2019 158 0078 21004
A Janm 2008 168 T8, E05. LM

Profa for Sia ywas — T 450

Total prehanive i /[exparne] for the year - 4,501 il

Oilarsds 10 shassmoidan = = =

At 31 Dec 2018 ] 1Al 1R

Equity = wholly attribitabla to squity chansholders of HSEC Management [Guarncey) Limited,

12
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HSBC Management (Guemsey) Limited

Notes on the financial statements

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
Tha financial statements of tha Entity have baén prapared m sccordance vwith the Guamaay Law as apphcabla 1o campanies using

IFRS: ac adopted by tha EU. Tha principal acoounting polices appled in the preparation of these financial statemants have basn
consetantly appled to all of the years presented, unlass othanwice Slated.

1.1. Basiz of preparation

{a} Cempliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

Tha financial statements of tha Entity have bean prapared i accordanca with IFRS: as issued by tha Intemational Accounting
Standards Board ['FASE'), mcluding interpretations iscued by the IFRS Interpretations Committes, and ac endorsad by the
Europaan Union ("EL]

A1 31 Dacembar 2019, thare ware no unandorsed standards affective for the year anded 31 Decembar 2015 nffacting these
financial statemants, and the Entiy's application of IFRSs results in no differences batwean IFRSs as isowed by the LASE and
IFRSs az andorzed by the ELL

Smndards adopted during the year ended 31 December 2019
FRS TE ‘Leases”

IFRS 16 Leagas bacama applicabls on 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 regults in lessess accounting for most lsages within the scopae of
the glandasd in & manmer similar 1o the way inowhich finence lease: ware previously sccounted for under 145 17 'Leazes’. Lesceas
racegnise & right of uge ('ROU') aseet and & cormesponding financial ability on the balance cheat. The asset ic smortised over the
langth of tha leace, and the financal kabilty measured at amortized coot. Lessor accounting remaing substantally the came sz it
wag under IAS 17, At 1. Janusry 2015, the entity doss net hold any leases and therefore no significant impact iz axpectad frem
1hiz standard

Armandiment to 1AT 12 Tncome Taxes”

An amendmant to 145 12 was iscued in Decembar 2017 ac part of the annual im provement cycla. The amendment clarifiss that
an Entity should recognice the tax consequences of devidends whare tha transactions of svens that ganarated the distnbutable
profits are recognised. This amendmeant vwas applied on 1 January 2018 and had no matenal impact. Comparatives have not been
raztated. Ac st 31 Decambar 20185, tha Entity does not hold sny parpetusl subardinatad contingent cormartible capital securitias
and tharefare no impact ic axpacted fram this amend mant.

{b} Future accounting developments

Minor amendments to IFRSs

Tha IASE published & number of miner amandmants 10 IFRSs which are effective frem 1 January 2020, some of whish have been
andorcad for uza in tha EU. Tha Entity axpacts thay will have an incignificant affect, whan adoptad, on the financm@l ctstemanc of
tha Entity.

Major mew IFRSs

IFRS T7 fnzurance Confracts”

IFRZ 17 “Insuranca Contracts’ was issued ;m May 2017, and sets oul the requiramants that an entiy should apply n acosunting
for insuranoe contracts it iscues and reincurance contracts it kolds. IFRS 17 iz currently affective from 1 Januany 2021, Howewver,

the 1ASE iz considering delaying the datony impl ion date by one year and may make sdditional changes fo tha
standard. A1 1 January 2013, tha Entity doss nat hold any mnsurance contracts and therafore no significant im pact ic axpected
from thiz standard

{c} Foreign currencies

The funciicnal eurraney of the Enity iz LIS dollars, which iz alzo the prezantation curranay of the financial staiermants of tha
Endtity,

Trancactions in foraign currancies are recorded o the rats of axchangs on the date of the trancection, Assag and liabilities
danaminated m ferign currancias are translated a1 the ra1e of axchanga a1 the balance chest date axcapl non-monelany assels
wnd linbdlitios maasured at higtorical cost, which are transisted uging the rata of exchangs at the initial tiom date. Exchanges
diffarances are included in cther comprehancive orin the satament depanding on whers the gain or lecs on the
undarlying item iz recegnized.

Unless otherwice cpecifisd, all US% cymbaols raprasent LIS dollars,
{d} Presentation of information
All smounts have basn rounded to the naarsst thousand unlezs otherwice ctated.

Financial Stetements Fraparation

Tha financial SAatements precent information about the Entity as an individual underaking and not about its group. The Entity =
not requirad 10 prepane o fidated financial ctalement by virtue of the exemption confarred by Ssction 244 (1} of the Guemzey
Lanw and par dia) of IFRS 10 'Consoldated financial statamants”

13
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HSBC Management (Guemsay) Limited

(&) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial infarmation requires the see of ectimates about future conditionz. In view of the inherent
uncaraintiss and the high level of cubjectivity invohoed in the recognition or messuremant of lems, highlightad in section (g}
ke, it iz possible that the outcemes in the nex finsncaal year could differ from those on which managemaent’s sctimates are
based, Thic could result in matenally differant conclusiens from thoce reaschad by management for the purposes of these financial
Ea ritz, Manag it s not uzed any judgements in praparation of thaze financal statemants

Mansgement’'s celaction of the Entity's scceunting policias which contain erical sstimates refleciz the matenalay of the Rems to
wwhich the policies are applied and the high degres of sctimation wnoedainty invalvad.

{f} Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concarn basis, ac the Directans are satisfied that the Enity has tha msources 1o
continue in business for the fereseeabla future. In making this assessment, the Directomn have considered a wide ranga of
infermation relating 1o presant and future conditins, ineluding future projections of prefability, cach flows and capial ressurces.

(g} Usa of estimates and assumption about future conditions
Tha preparation of financal infermation reqguires the vse of estimates and assumptions about future condtions.

Thase ectimates and acsy L raduarad mana g nit 1o make pudgernanis about the camrying value used in obtaming MNet
Azzet Value {"MNAV"), on which revenues are generated, are not readily available from sources other than the undarlying fund
administrator, dua to the time lag between the financial statamenis baing prepared and the release of the final NAY. Thase
astimatas and assumptions ars bated on hiftorical axpanances and othar factors that are conssdared to ba ralevant. Actual recults
mary differ from thece sslimates

The Entity will continue to reviaw whather thece astimates that have bean made reprezent an accurmte represantaton of the
financial information provided, Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the pariod in which the estimates are revised
and in any future pericds affectad, In the opinien of managament, all normal and recurming adjustiments considared necessary for
o fair pragertation of the Entity's income statement, balance chaet and statamant of cash fliows in thaze financial slatemants have
baen made,

{h} Changes to accounting palicy

The Entity has changed itz accounting polcy for classification of cartain fund relsied service provider axpanses 1o make the
financial statermants more reliable and relevant by adopting the policies of itz ukimate parent HSEC Holdings ple and othar HSBC
group anities. VWhare the I'uﬂd redated service provider sxpances are directly incremantal to the nm-mim of incomae, thase

L} BEE P gnized within “Fes and commizsion sxpance”™ in Tha Incorms Staemant, Iy thase axp W
umm:ld within “Genaral snd admmistrative expances”. Thare was ne impact to the Profit for lhrl yaar or nat assat posfion of
1ha Entity.

In applying mansriafity 1o financaal statamant disclosures, we consider both the amount and naturs of sach Bem 1o assess
whathar & prios year restatamant i required. The pros pancd financial statamaents itams in the table balow have bean reclacsified
1o conform (o the currant period prasaniation,

Comparativa balsncat have basn restated az follows:
Income Statement

018 0
Farstatad

WEE 000 LA TO0

it Bt 30 s 418
Filaiest axiem - -
et tarast income am A14
_FI_II Bk SO e T 51,023 B 023
Fas gl comm imwon wosres S LS 140.5ERY)
et Tes income 8228 t0, 256
it CPMEnG siranes L] _a
H-t mnm- B30 th 7
s marlowee sorrgermstion and barefite _{_:"I‘_.lﬂ '!!".f‘.“ll.
Carsare? and ﬁhr P T — [.05E) T, 06 |
Dopriisatann Bnd s renant of pRop- ey, Dant and sjudes st - =
Total opsrating sxpanzas 3850 [ ]
Prafi balors Lax 4,832 4, Had
_Tax s [Fal] @11
Prafit for the pesr A0 o501

14
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HSBC Management (Guemsey) Limited

1.2 Summary of cignificant accounting policiez
{a} Invectments in subsidiaries

Tha Entity classifies investmants in entities which i1 controls as subsidiares. ¥Whora the subsidiary, s govemed by vaoting rights,
HSEC Holdings Pl conzolidatas whan the Entity holds, directly or indirectly, the nacessary voting rightz to pass resolutsons by
the govaming body. In all other casex, 1he assessmani of coantrol £ more complex and requires judgemant of othar factors,
including having axpozure to variability of returns, power to dinsct relevant activitias and whether povwer iz held az agent or
prinzipal,

Tha Entity’s invesiments in subsidiares are stated 1 cost less iImpainment losses.

{b} Employes compensation and benefits

Share-basaed payrmants

Tha Entity antars infa both equity-cettled and cach-cattlad chare-bazed paymant arrangamants with its amployees az
compenzation for the provision of thair sersces.

Tha vaziing paricd for these schames may commance balors the grant date if the amployess have stared to render sanvices in
ragpect of the avward bafore the grant date. Expences are recognised when the employes starts to render sendics to which the
wward ralntes

Cancallations result fram the failure 16 mast a nen-vesting condition during the vesting period, and afe treated as an accelerstion
of yacting recognized immediately in the inceme statament. Failure 16 maet a vasting cendition by the employes is nat treated as
a cancellation, and the smount of axpance recognized for the sward iz adjusted 10 reflect the number of swarnds sxpected 10 vest

Post-amployment benefit plang

Tha HSEC group opersies & nunvbar of pansicn schames including definad banala, dafined contribution, snd post-amploymant
banaln schemas.

Payments to dafined contribution cchemas are changed ac an axpance atc the employesc render cervice.

Dafined banefs pension obligationzs are calculated using the projected unit cred®t mathod, Tha net chargs to the mcoma
slatemant mainky comprizes the servics coct and the net interest on the net dafined benafit accet or labilsy, and i presenied in
oparating eNpenses

Remeazyramant of the nat defined banafit ssset or liabdity, which comprize sctuarial geing and losses, relum on plan scseiz
axcluding intarast and the affect of the asset ceding (if any, excluding interest), are recognizsed immadiately in othar
comprahansive incoma, The net dafined banafit asset or liability reprezents the prasent value of defined banefit obligations
raduced by the fair value of plan assets, afier applying the aszet cailing test, whare the nat defened benefi surplus ic limited to the
presant value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan

The cost of obligations arising frem other pest-employmant plans is sccounted for on the came basis sz defined benefit pansian
plans

{o} Tax
Income tax compricas 1 tax mnd deferrad 1ax | 18 ie gniced in the income statemant axcept to the extent that i

ralates ta itams recognized in cther comprabenshoe incoma or dirsctly in squity, in which cace the 1ax it recegnized in the same
siatemant in which the relatad item appears.

Currant tax it the tax axpected 1o ba payable on the taxable profit for the year and an any adjustrent 1o tax payable in respact of
provious years. The Entity provides for potentsall currant tax Eabiddses that may arica on tha bacis of the amounts expactsad to bs
raid tothe tax authorities.

Currant tax s caloulated based on tax rates and laws anacted, or substantivedy anacted, by the balance chest date.
{d} Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Trede and ather recenables

Trade and cther recervables are meognmad indtially at fair valus and subzequently measured at amonzed cott using the aflective
intarest method, lecs impairment. Accets clacsified and measured at amoniced cost are monitorad for any expected credit loss
using the smplified appreach. A provessn for impasrment s established whan thers i objective evidencs that tha Entity will nat
ba abla o collact all amounts dus sccording to the original tarms of tha recanvablas. The amount of tha provician ic the diffaranca
between the aszat's carmying value and the present valus of sctimated future cach flows, diccounted at the original affectiva
intarast rate. When a trade recaivable is uncollactable, # ic wimtan off against trade recarvables and tha amount of the ket
racegniced in tha income statement. Subzequent recovaries of amounis previously written off are credited 1o the income
ctatemant,

Trade and ather payables

Trade and other payablas reprecent limbiities for goods and services provided to the Entity by other group companies prior 1o the
and of tha financisl year, which are unpaid. The amowniz are recogniced initially at thair fair valve and subzequently measured st
amortited cast vsing the affactive interact method.

Acerusle and other knancial liabilities

Tha amacunis ana recognsed intialy at fair valua and subsaquenily measured at amonised cost using the effective intarest
mathod

{&) Called up chare capital

Financinl instruments issuad are ganerally clacsafied ac equity when there i no contractual obligatson to transfer cash or ather
financial azzets. Inoremantal coste directhy attributable to the issus of eguity instruments are chown in equity 8z a deduction from

tha procesds, net of tax

15
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{f} Cash and cazh equivalents

Cach and cazh aqunvaleants include highly bquid (nvesiments that are readily convemible 1o known amounts of cash and which are
cubjact 10 an ingignificant rigk of changs in value, Such invectmants are normally these with lass than thres monthe’ maturiy
freem tha date of acquisiton,

{g} Property, plant and equipnent

Eauipmant, fixiures and fittings (including squipmant on oparaling leases whare the Entity i the lessor) are stated ot cogt lesg
impairmant lozzes and depreciation over thesr useful lves, which are genarally batwesn 2 years and 5 yearz. Property, plant and
aquipment i subject ta an impairmant review if their carrying amount may not ba recoverable

Tha carrying armount of an item or propany, plant and equipmaent chall be derecegniced on disposal or when no future asenamic
banafis ars expacted from iz use or deposal,

{h} Dperating income
Interest incoma and expenge

Irterast incorma and axpance for all financial instrumants dasignated a1 Fair valus are recognizzed in 'Intarast incoma’ and 'Intarest
axpanza’ inthe income ststement uzing the affective interest meihod

Tha affactive interast rata iz tha rate that axactly diccaunts astimated future cach recapis or paymants thrsugh the axpactad life
of tha financeal instrumant or, whare approperate, & chortar pariod, 1o the net canrying amount of the financial ascet or financal
linbdlity.

Interact on impaired financial acsets = recogniced using the rate of misrest used to dicoount the fulure cach flows for the purpoce
of measyring the impairmant koss

Mon-interest income and axpenss

Met fee income iz samad from a deearsa range of services provided by tha Entity fo Az customars. This i recognised in tha
accounting pariod whan tha sanvéces are randared at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Entity axpecis to ba
antitled in axchange for fulfiling s performance obligations to custemars. The principles applied to tha revenue recognition
ariferia 1ca the five step model in IFRS 15. Revenua i determined baced on the trancaction price negotiated with tha cectomar.
Imvastmant managemant cenvices are saticfied over time ag the services are provwded and are typically bazed upon a parcentaga
of the value of the clant's aszets under managamant. Any fesc collected in advance are dafarred and recognised as incoma owvar
tha pariod in which services are remdered

Parformance fes revenves will fluctuste from pariod 1o panod and may not cormelate with genaral markel changes, since moot of
tha fess are driven by relative parformance 1o the respecines banchmark rather than by aboolute performance. Parformance fas
ravanuss are genarated on certain managemant contracts whan parformance hurdles ame achisved. Such fae revenues are
racerdad in aparating revenues when the coniractual parformance critena have been et and whaen i iz prebable that s
significant ravarcal of revenus recognized will ot eccur i fulure reporting panods. Ghean 1ha unequs natuns of sach lea
amangament, parformanca fes contracts are svaluated on an individual basis 1o determing tha fiming of revenua recognition,
Parformance faes may anse from investmen managamant activitss that ware initially undamaken in prior reponing parieds.

It & cammon for the Entity to utilice centain HSBC affilated entities to fulfil certam parformance abligations in A% revenee
agreamanis. Genaraly, tha Entny it dearned te ba the principal in these arrangemants, bacausze the Entity contrals the services
bafore they sre transfarred to customers. Such contral is evidanced by the Entity's paimary responsibility 10 custormers, the ability
1o negatiate the affiliate price and calect and direct affiliate service providers, of a combination of thesa factars. Thesafors,
managarmnant fas revenues and the ralaied affiliate dictribution, services and advisony axpanses are reported on 8 gross basis as the
cafvicas afa providad.

Fae exponses paid for the distribution and provision of services is recognised as expence as the services are provided .
Dividend income

Dividend income ic recognised when the right to receive a paymant ic established. Thic ic wsually the date whan tha
shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted equity securties.

Other operating income i sarned from a diverse range of servicas provided by the Entity to is customan
{i} Offzetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financinl aszets and financial liabilties are offset and the net amount is reported in tha balance shest whan thare is a lagally
anforceabla right to offcet the recognised amounts and thare is an infantion to cattle on & net bazis, or reakce the assat and settle
tha kability simullanegusly,

2. Net interest income

2018 xin
US§ 00 L0

[ r—

Intarass reoma on Tinancinl it 84 415

18
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3. Net fee income
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el g imant, aor
Fond peaeformmgnca b

e BTy il e TrLawtiod P

P:n.-:u.'ull—..! foyun
Total fes ard commission incams

NS ] T (POLEY LN TR

Ratiem commmeonn pas 16 e oot

T idvecry Tt

Fund prformmgnce fowl

Fund msnsgamant, admnat shion T erd tostes fees

Tetal fee and commission sapenes

Todal Met fes incoms

Fund management and trustes feas

The Entity receives managament, adminictration and trustes feas, normally based on a percentage of the underlying Met Ascet
Valua {MAY') or total commigmants of the rezpactive funds. Management, adminictration and trustaa feas sra recogniced on an
accruals basiz. The management, adminctration and trustss feas receivable at tha year-and detailad in Mote 14, Fiducmary incoms

frgmm tha Entity's regulated fidwciary activitkes amowent to $1.2 million {2018: $1.4 million}.

Return commissions paid to group undertakings

The Entity pays, ot its dizserstion, return commissong to group undenakings and cerain approved third panties whe introduce
subgcribars to fends under mansgemant. RmMum commissions fall ime two categoerias: Firgt o portien of the Placament fea (whare
applicabla} and second as ongoing trailer commission based on the MAY of mones mtroduced by units and which remain
wzzociated with the paniculer unit, Commicsions are accounted for on an accruals basiz and the commizsions pavable at the

waar-gnd are detailed in Nota 18
Investment advisory fees

The Entity pays investmant advisory feas 1o fallow subsidiary of HSBC Group and third pany managers whare mansgement hag

baan delegated. Investmant advisory feas arm sccounted for on an sccruais basss.

Fund performance fees

Under the varous menagemant agresmaents with the underdying funds, the Entity may be entiiled to a parformanca fee. The Entity
has tha lbih'.' to chare any cuch Parformanca fess with actociates and invectmant advisars ac approprats. Parformances fees are

racegnised when tha right to recaiva the parformanca fes income is established,

Whare a service is iransferred to tha customar bafore the customar pays consideration, or before payment iz due, these amowntz
ara included as accruwed income in Mote 14, Whare the company has an unconditicnal right to considemation for the services
zupplied and performance obligations delivered, thace amounts are included as trade receivables in Mote 11,

4. Other operating (expensalincome

Hhar cranetng noome

Foeaign aichangs i

¥ear anded 31 Doc

5. Employee compensation and benefits

Towl employes compansanon

Emplovas comgmnatt=on and benalite

010 070

P00

—_— s =
125} |54

{85} 11201

010 2018
us§ 000 sse00_

I.H 1 .1-".".'-

All staff acting on behalf of tha Entity are paid by HSBC Bank Plo Guerncey Emanch (GPE}L On o manthly basiz, GPE invoices tha
Entity Tor staff utdizad in the Entiy's operations. For the year anded 21 Decamber 2019, GPE billed the Entigty a total of

31,720,656 (2018:; $1,098,183) for calaries and banafits,
Avarage numbes of persans emploved by the Entity during the year

Goainmons and Suppart

Hand Oy Azt rusimpian

Tonr snded 31 Dec

2018 2018
L]

1 13

2 &
15 16

17
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6. Auditors’ remuneration

2019 18
us oo L o0
Airan Tikd fof e DS
[ e ——p— &5 ]
Yoar ended 21 Dot (3] E?
7. Tax expenze
Tax axpenze
2010 Fochl:
S 000 LISg
Caurrant Lax
Oy Comporaban tox
- Fost sufears yaar ] .?'I_
Yaar anded 31 Dec 2 Fal

Fallowang the paszing of the Incame 1ax {Zere 10} [Company intarmediats Ratel (Amendmant)[Gueamsay) Ordinance 2012 on 13
Dacambar 2012, with effect fram 1 January 2013 the Enty 's incame sricing, net of deductible sxpenses, from specific regulated
Tiduciary business ic taxad at the Entity intermediate rate of 1086 (Note 3 chews the fiduciary income sarmed in the year).
Subzequent on 28 Juby 2015, the incems tax (Zers 10 (Company Intarmed ate Rate} {(Amendmant) (Gusmnzey] Ordinances 2015
ithe 'Armendment’} was pasted, affective fram 1 January 2015, Tha scope of taxable business activitses, subject 1o the Entity
intarmadists rate of 109, wae axtandsd 1o includa imcoma fram tha administration of controlled invectmants. Tha Board of
Directors contidered the existing revenua from the ad ministration of contrelled investmanis to be out of scope as the
Amandmant, section 2E, included only provision of administration services 1o controlled investments by unconnected third

partios, Tha ramaindar of tha Entity’s incoma is taxed ot the company standard rate of 0%. Tha Entity has 51,550 BXpENSAS i
ralation to the texstian on e fdusiary business (2018 $21,060).

Tha affective Guernsey corporation tax rats apphying to the Entity was 0.04% (2018: 0.240%).
Tax reconciliation

Thae tax chargad 10 the Income Sistemant deas not difter 1o the tex expence that would apply if all profitz had basn taxed at the
Guamsay Comporate tax mate

8. Dividends

013 oty
§ e ahEsE USH ga8 j EETTLI LA

Dividends dednared on ordinary shares
Frinl g ritarem dandtarsd ot fammeat of e castinel yene =

A tenal dividand far 2009 of $0 milkan (2018: 30 million) was paid on the ordinary share capital during the year ended
31 December 2015,

9. Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2618
w000 e
ATz P P b W TP 0D Rk AL 19,53 12152
Amounts hald with athear group undenakings are wd and repayable an damand.
10. Reconciliation of profit before tax to Net cash flow
2018 278
w000 Lo
Praft bafors tax 4,474 [T
Hon-cash Hem included in profit and I
Ebmenmbon for axchange difarenoos [RE:)] 18
[LET] 18
Changes s Oparsting assels
Crandd @ DiaDEa ant & 8o d T @36} 2280
e e ————— 5, 7aN IE-._'-T._PE
(e 0,458}
Changs in opoerating Eabilitiss
Cramga @ o tus i &d o™il bald Sas 4,35 3) 8,037
Shangs in Trads Sl St Dovaliies — %N} _ 208
1708 |7}
Tax paid for the year — 1
Ieul cosh flvw generated from operating sctivities 2.320 Gl
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11. Trade and other receivables
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2018 2208
w000 L1000
Senouran dos hom 40w groue undymdngs 1% 8
Trnds ooawvables 0 12 140
Trada s cohar bicalvablan. prlor 1o pios L 507
Prowaion [eigl] 1611}
AL} Dee 7.511 i
Amounts due frem cther group undertakings are unsecurad and repayable on demand,
12. Investments in subsidiaries
IO 207
w00 L)
FrarTmen n subacd s nag [eR i b o oa
Ifrterest in
Country of  Equity Capital Maad
Incorpam ian ) share Class shares
2018
HSBC (Guarmsey) GP PCC Limined’ b ] Lk Lt i
2078 . . - : —
WEED [Quamasyt OF PCE Lmsed| s Ty 100 Qranary $1 1

1 Aodesss: Ay Movea, EF ukant A, B Falee Fon, Gussmedy, GY

P

Tha subsidiary acts ac a Genaral Partner for Guarncey Limited Partnarships.

13. Property. plant and equipment

Faugmanes, Faduras o fesnge

08 2018
usg 000 s§000
1,190 1190
1,150 1,180
MR 1,20 L0,
charge for tha yesr - -
Az a1 31 Decembar 1,190 1,180
Net book valos
At Jnsmiy == !
_As a1 31 Decembae = =
14. Prepayments and acerued income
010 201
[ e 1]
Hacips Funcls Menagemact Fees: = He
Prvets Equety Maragamant Fess 10,102 [T
Roni Eminta Management Faan oFd 25680
Pardormence fae AN 1]
A3 Daec 18,250 0,624
15. Trade and other payables
L .
[T R LS00
Aenounts dos b ofher groun wndartaknge 10,605 L =T

Amounts due 1o othar group undertakings are unsecurnad

. interact fres and have no foed date of mpaymants.

19
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16. Accruals and other financial liabilities

Toi P
usg 0o LS00
Aesroni 1291
Armounts cweed ta othar group LndiAsGngs 11,400
?ll‘ﬁl St an 1
A Deo 12,093

Amocunts due 1o sther group undertakings afe unsecurad, non-ntarest beanng and repayvable on demand.

17. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Az at 31 December 2013, thera wers no amounts subject to anforceabls natting arrangaments (2018: Milj.

18. Called up share capital

il 2058
Humier (15 -2 ] TR (1.5 ia i
Suensns. piloblid ard Ry Dl 4 S -
Circknary pharas of £ -m-:: 60,000 158 -"' 0,000 168
Aa 11 Jarunry s 37 Dagarmibad 100,000 158 105,000 158

19. Contingant liabilities, contractual mmminmntn and guarantees
Thare were no contingant lisbilities or financisl guarantes contracts as at 31 Decembar 20018 [2018- nil)

20. Management of financial risk

All of tha Entity's activities involve to varying degrees, tha anabysis, evaluation, acceptance and managemaent of ricks or
combination of risks. The most important types of rick include financial sk, which comprices oredit rick, liquidity risk and market
rigk. Tha management of financial risk and congideration of profability, cach flows and ca pital rezources form a key elamant in
tha Directors’ assassment of the Entily ac a going concern,

Cradit rick managameant

Cradit resk i the risk of financial logs i 8 customer or counterparty of the Entity fails to meet » payment obligaticn under a
contract,

‘Winhin the cversll frarnewerk of the HSBC Group policy, theEntity has an established risk r a it process r

cradit approvals, the contrel of axposures, cradit policy direction to the business, snd the monnomng and reponing of upn:uru

Tha managamant of tha Entity ic responcibla for tha quality of its credit parfalios and follows a cradit pracess invalving d-uruqamd
approval authorities and crad® procedures, the objsctive of which & 1o identify prablam axp in arder ta Larale

action while building a portfslic of high quality risk assets. The Entity’s aredit risk rating nmm: and procesoes diffarantiate
axposures in ardar to highlight those with grastar rizk fsctors and higher potential ceverity of loss. Regular raviaws ana
undartaken to assecs and evaluste levels of risk concantration,

Tha r=k arices from transactions with HESBC undartakings. The managamant of cradit iz undertakean in compliance with ths Entity
rachargs strategy, The Entity oparates within thic and the credi rick axposures are reviewed and managed by the senior
maragarmant of the Entity and the HSBC Group's Finance Exco, The maximum credit axposuna of tha Entity i Bmited to tha
garrying value of the dues from an HSBC Group company and third party. Balances are primarily with the HSBEC Group and thad
party and hava kow credit risk.

Cradit ek = managed within the ovemnll frervework of HSBC policy, with an sstablshed rick managemant process ancampassing
cradit approvals, the control of axposures (including those to borrowaers in financial difficulty), credit palicy direction 1o buzinass
units and the manfading and reporting of sxposures both on an individual and portfolic bacis. The Directors are rezponsible for
the quality of credin penfolies and follew a cradit proeess involing delegated approval authorities and credit procedures, the
ohjective of which is to build and maintain risk azseds of high quality,

Regular reviews are undanaken 12 assess and avaluste levels of ik concantration, including these to individusl industry sectors

and products. Credin mek fc mansged a1 a group bval by business sector, rathar than in respect of individusl undertekings and it
tharabase not considerad appropriate to discloze quantitative data about exposure 1o that ngk.

The Entity"s exposure ta cred il risk i relation to cash held with sthar group entities ralales 1o greup undenakings that ate whalky-
aeened subtidaries of HSBEC Haldings ple, and ara part of tha Business decoribad above. Such counterpartes have no hitlory of
dafauh and have bean able to rmeet thair kabiStes as they fall dus. On thiz basic the Entity considars the smounz due te be fully
raceverable

Thare are no significant concentrations of rick in tha Entity.
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Tha Entity’s axposura 1o risk amcez mainky from third party and intancompany fas recaivables. &n imporant messurs of cradit rick
it in tha againg of fees recanabla a: reparted bakow:

Duw within $0 days  Dus Sidays - 1 year Chee cver | yoar Tatsl
At 3 Dec 2013 US4 800 [ ] Us$'an0 us§'o0n
“Gasn nnd cesn squwslants ] 18,531 - - 18,531
Tende and o insinalie 351 3,34 248 .51
Propmyrmarse and paonsard ncors 17,800 363 L i, 290
Nel enpaiure 0,952 3,706 G674 45,332
(Dum wethen B daym Chye 20dars - 1 year Dl oy 1y Total
A3 Dea 2018 - ] LEE0 000 (= ]
Cank and cash sgusvslants TrE2 = - EAER
Tinds mnd o racanvmbles (N1~ 4,785 =1 LR
Prapaymants and poonsed mocme A1 & ] .5
[ 24,677 4,765 54} o162
Liquidity risk management
Legusdity ek iz the nsk that the Entity doas net have sulfiziant financial 1 mesl cbligatians sz thay fall due or will have

aceass 19 such resources anby st an excective cont, The nek arises from mismaiches in the timing of cach flows.

Tha fallawing is an analyzs of undizcsuntad cazh flewe payvable under vansus financial iabilties by remaining santractual
maturities at the balsnce chest date:

Eontractmi cnsh
Carrying valus Tlows A Drpammanvd
USFa0e SO0 us$'000
Tumcha B orar pepst e 10,505 10,605 0,605
j-wn-ull. dala e sdoma and o inbdtne 13,803 15,853 43,8583
A -D._I;]ﬂ'll Eﬂ !1.2_‘“;- 1&2_;‘“_.
Comtrootunl cosh
Coiryed wha 1 e
Ll l.l'l:l- Q)
Tibcks BNG oar pEyno e - T
Acsruale, dalaired Meome a0l oFw Inbl2as hEA L BB
“AT3T Dez 2018 23600 T

Market risk management

Marked rick is the rick that movernants in market factors including interest rates, foreign exchange mtes or aquity and commaodity
prices will impact the Entity’s income or the value of its portfalios.

Tha Entiny’s cbjactive iz 10 manage and control markel rate axp whila
appetita

Tha Entiry managas markes nick threugh risk kmits appeoved st the Risk Managamant Masting and adopied by the Entity's Board
An indepandent risk unit develaps nck management policies and measeramant tachnxues, and revienws lmi wilicatken on o daily
bage

Foreign exchange risk

Currency sansitivity

A 5% gtrangthaning of the UIS Dollar againgt the following currencies as at 31 Decambar 2075 would have reduced profits by the
amoums shown balow, A S % weakening would have had the squal bt opposite affects 10 the amounts shown balow:

img & marke profile consictant with its rek

Profit or Logs
2019 Fop ]
Us000 LrSE00
13 i Ll
b ar
28 20
44 &h
1_21"' I

Fa
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Foraign axchrnge risk

The Entity iz axpased 10 currency fzk i recpect of income and cach balances denominated in a currency ather than US Dallar.
The Entity"s exposurs iz kept 10 an accaptable kevel by managing the leval of non-US Dollar cazh balances on » regular basio. The
Entity's balance chast comprises balances hald in different currancias. At the reperting date the currency profile of the Entaty
bakance shee was:

US dellars Srerlng Euri Ouher Toasl
At 31 Dec 2018 us§n0e US§ 000 Us§oes s 000 US4000
Totnl aieats 40,287 3,692 1,304 48 5,332
Tert) isiilities el aausty (a2, 1) [2,35m) 7y = (4%, 332)
Nt amas o {1887} 1,283 556 48 -
A3 Dez 2018 USH T 55000 PSS O00 IESF 000 LrS5000
Totnl nemets L 2,409 1164 14 .62
Teial [uabs b gl mduoty [ EEE] (R ] =2 - 28,152
ol araEith 1295 L] B0E i —

21. Financial rezources requirement

Tha table below etz out the calowlation of financinl resouroe reguirements pursuant to the provisionz undar Rule 2 2.2 of tha
Licancess (Capital Adequacyl Rulss 2010

018 08
L]

Fngnoal s fautamant St

Not bimmts after aduistments, corlingert Inbitan and reia
Gy v of 258 Annual Audied Expoendriure snd C100000 fUSS 152.250]

o m rrem o o

2, 188]
Mot Surpluy R inl Aesources 28,783 L5280
Mot urrant amswts, wwe fonn 10 grinsd Somperry A, 2 b 201
Crentad i |00 Arvual M ed Expandiure snd £10,000 [UFS§ 13,321] [EEL] =]
Mot Swrplus Liguidity 19,9681 e g

In addition, thars muct ba a minimem profacsicnal indemnity incurance covar of E300000 (or thras times 1olal ravanus,
whichavar & graatar), the axesss of which mugt net axcead 20%% of the total insured.

22. Related party transactions

Tha Entity’s relstad pantiss include the parant, fallow subsidiaries, post-amploymant banefi plans for the Entity"s amployses, ey
Mansgemeni Parconnal, cloge family members of Key Managemaent Parsonnal and entiiss which are contrelled or ssgnificanily
influancad by Key Managament Parsonnal of ther closa family meambars.

{a) Transactions with Directors and other Key Management Parsonnal

Key Managemeni Parconnal are defined as thote parsons having suthonty and responsibilfty for planning. directing and
contralling the activities of the Entity and includes membars of the Board of Dwecton

Mo loans wara made 1o Key Management Perconnal for the year ended 21 December 3015 {2018 Monal. Thers are no
transactions, ather than fess paid 1o directgrs of tha Entity, betvweasn the Entity and Key Managemant Parsonnal, which fall to ba
disclozad under 145 24 "Related Party Dicclosures” betveean the Entity and the Key Managament Personnal.

{b} Transactions with other related parties
Trensacton: datsils below neludes amounts dus tofrem HSEC Global Asset Management Lirmited

2098 2018
Higheat Dsbanen Eslance st 31 Highedn Ca s Eamnoe i 3}
deing the year " Decmmber  currg ey Tacrhe
UEL'000 LISH g LisH Lrsae)
A1 - - - =
Lty | st = = = =
¥ T s OF D M) (T AT % Sl P Pl D0 Obweg Dl YA A OVISATA" e Te FIIAT A o LT AR ST LT D AT

00 2
WSS 000 L

Ovesgansd to sharaho'der
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HSBC Management (Guemsay) Limited

Transactions deteils below nclude amounts dus toffrom other group undertakings

2008 2048
Higheat “‘H‘I Balanca ot 31 Faghgu? l.‘ql.r\q1 Bamnce = 31
daating the yesr Decamber  curng e Dercaries
UE4'000 (Ths 30 LIS [ ]
Assals
Crieh nrd cush egqusmbints 26,568 19,530 REAE] L AL
Teeeds and o Sl 1,705 1242 5= 1,851
Linbditias
Tence and osher peyet e 8,127 10, 65 Bl & i
b ktlinaa 18,989 11,803 1452 14,3

1 Tha clcmsieyn oF D A AST DATROSE ST 50 A AT BAIRSss Jring B YAAr i vt 00 e T Aeaa g LT EEnTIINET I MEnenany FRARESA NG Bhe paar

010 2018
- g 000 1000
...............
IR P e B4 416
i 5V GOV RN 0 - FLiNed MANBgHMEnT B0 SOMmEiieton Mab am Tk
Fas i ommmmman eapane - Hetum commmaiion 17281 EE.477
Faa wnd oommsmon sxpanes - inysstmant sy feas 21,688 13,280
Fit 571 O idme0N G0 « Fund parfomancs fis o, 354 1418
Fan wrd sommuamon st - Othas faes 957 A58
Emglingaa srdanaston and manalis 1,723 1,086
CHhar opansing moome L 12l
(Garwira! Bnd S5 NV dkDenEe a9l [oh]
Tha abowvas trancactions wears mads in tha ordinary course of buzi and on cubstantially tha cama terms, including intarast rate

and gacurity, as for comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing or, whena applicable, with ather employeass, The
trancactions did not inwohe more than the normal rick of repayment or present sthar unfavourablde faatures.

23. Parent undertakings
The ulimata parent underaking and ultimate controlling party is HSEC Holdings ple which is the parent undenaking of the

fargast group to consobdate these financal ctatements. HSEC Bank plo is the porent underaking of the crmallest growp to
congolidate thase financial clatements,

Thae Entity iz 8 wholly evwnad subzidiary of iz immadiate parent undenaking HSBC Global Asset Managemani Limited and has
baen o throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, The Entity was incorporated in Guarmsey on 25 Septembar 1985 All
companies, ultimate controlling party, parent undenaking and immadiate parent underiaking, are registarsd in England and
Wales,

Copies of tha HSBE Global Azset Managemant Limited and HSBC Bank Ple consolidated Financial Statemants can be obiained
Traem;

HSEC Bank ple
B Canada Square
Lendon E14 5HO
Uniteed Kingdom

wwner hsbeo.com

24. Events after the balance sheet date

COVID-19 outbreak which amarged and spread 1o the UK in eary 2020, has now b o global pandemiz whizh hag cauged
widasproad market and sconomes decruption. The disruption has Baan svident in the recant global stock market fluctustions,
howavar the long term cutlook remains unceriain, Al tha present tima, givan the uncemainty, the full impact of the COVID-15
eannot be pradicted or maagured. The COVID-19 cutbreak iz considered 1o be a nen-adjusting poct balance chest evant as par
1AS 100
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HSBC C.l.
HSBC Private Bank C.l. Limited

800 4,288

60
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch
HSBC
1,120 8,211

State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited

200,000

HSBC

State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

350,000

HSBC
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HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

602,000

E145HQ

HSBC
HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC

8 2.5 314
31
)
HSBC
HSBC
9,227 9,800
HSBC HSBC
197 7,500
116,102,479,495
7,583 8,128
31
13.60 )
781
HSBC C.I.

HSBC Private Bank C.l. Limited
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HSBC
HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch
HSBC

State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited

State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

HSBC
HSBC Securities Services (lreland) DAC
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Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of HSBC Specia Opportunities Fund

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financia position of HSBC
Specia Opportunities Fund (the “trust”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Fund”) as at 30 April 2020, and of their consolidated
financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102
"The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

What we have audited
The Fund's consolidated financial statements comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 April 2020;

e the consolidate statement of total return for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information included in the Annual
Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of HSBC Specia Opportunities Fund (continued)

Responsibilities of the manager for the consolidated financial statements

The manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in
accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, the provisions of the Trust Deed and for such
internal control as the manager determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statementsthat are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financia statements, the manager is responsible for ng the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the manager either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranceisahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAswill always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the manager.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that amaterial uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fundo cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Fund to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Fund audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of HSBC Specia Opportunities Fund (continued)

Use of this report

Thisindependent auditor's report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders asabody in
accordance with Paragraph 4.02(3) of The Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 and the Trust Deed
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

27 August 2020
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Report of the independent auditors to the members of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited (the “Company”) as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of The Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008, The Regulation of Fiduciaries, Administration Businesses and Company Directors, etc

(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2000 and The Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987.

What we have audited

The Company’s financial statements comprise:

e the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

e the income statement for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ('ISAs'). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("IESBA Code") and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included
in the Annual Report and Financial Statements but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified

above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
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statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, the requirements
of Guernsey law and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
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on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This independent auditor's report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the members as a
body in accordance with Section 262 of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 and for no other purpose. We do
not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom

this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Under The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;

e proper accounting records have not been kept; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 22. In our opinion the
financial resources requirement specified in Rule 2.2.2 of The Licensees (Capital Adequacy) 2010 Rules has been

satisfied.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants

Guernsey, Channel Islands

07 April 2020
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